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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

ANTONIO LARA CERRANO, on his own 
behalf and on behalf of all others similarly 
situated, 

Plaintiffs,  

v.  

SODEXO, INC., a Delaware corporation; 
SDH EDUCATION WEST, LLC, a Delaware 
LLC; and DOES 1 through 100, inclusive, 

Defendants. 

No. ___________________ 

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION  

Contra Costa Superior Court,  
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1 NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION 
U.S.D.C., N.D. Cal., No. _________________ 

 

To the Clerk of the Court, plaintiff Antonio Lara Cerrano and plaintiff’s attorneys of record: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that defendants Sodexo, Inc. (“Sodexo”), and SDH Education West, 

LLC (“SDH”), hereby remove this action from the Superior Court of California in and for the County of 

Contra Costa (the “Superior Court”) to this Court, based on diversity of citizenship jurisdiction under 28 

U.S.C. section 1332 (as amended by the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005 [“CAFA”], Pub. L. No. 109-

2, § 4(a), 119 Stat. 9 (2005)), and section 1441(a), and, in support of removal, alleges as follows:  

1. On April 15, 2019, plaintiff Antonio Lara Cerrano commenced a putative class action in 

the Superior Court entitled: “Antonio Lara Cerrano, on his own behalf and on behalf of all others 

similarly situated, Plaintiffs, v. Sodexo, Inc., a Delaware corporation; SDH Education West, LLC, a 

Delaware LLC; and DOES 1 through 100, inclusive, Defendants,” No. C19-00763 (the “Action”).  A 

true copy of plaintiff’s complaint in the Action (the “Complaint” or “Cmplt.”) is attached as Exhibit A.   

2. The Complaint asserts five causes of action for: (1) failure to pay for sick days or provide 

notice of available sick leave; (2) failure to pay vacation wages; (3) failure to provide accurate written 

wage statements; (4) failure to timely pay all final wages; and (5) unfair business practices under 

California’s unfair competition law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 et seq.  (Cmplt., ¶¶ 38-76.)  

Plaintiff purports to bring these claims on behalf of a “Plaintiff Class,” consisting of “[a]ll employees 

who were or are employed by Defendants during the Class Period (The Class Period is the period from 

four years prior to the filing of this action through and including the date judgment is rendered in this 

matter) in California as ‘non-exempt employees.’”  (Id., ¶ 30.)  Plaintiff also alleges a “Terminated Sub 

Class,” which he pleads to include “[a]ll members of the Plaintiff Class, including trainees, whose 

employment ended during the Class Period.”  (Id.)  The allegations in the Complaint are incorporated by 

reference without admitting the truth of any of them. 

3. On April 17, 2019, plaintiff effected service of process on defendants of the summons 

and the Complaint in this Action.  True copies of the summons and all papers (in addition to the 

Complaint) that each defendant respectively received from plaintiff in this Action are attached to this 

notice; true copies of the summons and all papers (in addition to the Complaint) served on Sodexo are 

attached as Exhibit B, and true copies of the summons and all papers (in addition to the Complaint) 

served on SDH are attached as Exhibit C. 
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2 NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION 
U.S.D.C., N.D. Cal., No. _________________ 

 

4. This notice of removal is effected properly and timely pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 

1446(b), as it is filed within 30 days after defendants were served with the summons and complaint in 

the Action.  See 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b) (“The notice of removal of a civil action or proceeding shall be 

filed within 30 days after the receipt by the defendant, through service or otherwise, of a copy of the 

initial pleading setting forth the claim for relief upon which such action or proceeding is based....”). 

5. Notice of this removal will be given promptly to both plaintiff and the Superior Court 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1446(d). 

6. Venue of this Action exists in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1441(a) because 

the Superior Court is located within this District. 

Removal Is Proper under CAFA 

7. The Action is one over which this Court has original jurisdiction under the provisions of 

28 U.S.C. section 1332, and may be removed to this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. sections 1441(a) and 

(b), on the following grounds: 

a. The Action is properly removed to this Court under the amended rules for 

diversity of citizenship jurisdiction under CAFA. 

b. CAFA amended 28 U.S.C. section 1332 to provide that a putative class action is 

removable to federal court if (i) any member of the class of plaintiffs is a citizen of a state different from 

any defendant, (ii) the proposed class members number at least 100; and (iii) the amount in controversy 

exceeds $5,000,000, exclusive of interest and costs.  119 Stat. 9 § 4(a) (2005).  Each of these 

requirements is met in this Action. 

The Citizenship of the Parties Is Diverse  

8. Sodexo is now, and was at the time this Action was commenced, a citizen of a state other 

than the State of California within the meaning of 28 U.S.C. section 1332(c)(1).  Sodexo is now, and 

was as of April 15, 2019, a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Delaware with its 

principal place of business in the State of Maryland.  (Declaration of Kelly Barbary in Support of Notice 

of Removal of Civil Action (“Barbary Decl.”), ¶ 2.)  

9. SDH is now, and was at the time this Action was commenced, a citizen of a state other 

than the State of California within the meaning of 28 U.S.C. section 1332(c)(1).  SDH is now, and was 
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3 NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION 
U.S.D.C., N.D. Cal., No. _________________ 

 

as of April 15, 2019, a limited liability company organized under the laws of the State of Delaware with 

its principal place of business in the State of Maryland.  SDH is composed solely of Sodexo America, 

LLC, which is now, and was as of April 15, 2019, a limited liability company organized under the laws 

of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business in the State of Maryland.  Sodexo America, 

LLC, in turn, is composed solely of Sodexo Management, Inc., which is now, and was as of April 15, 

2019, a corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York with its principal place of 

business in the State of Maryland.  (Barbary Decl., ¶ 3.) 

10. Sodexo and SDH are the only defendants named in this Action.  The presence of Doe 

defendants has no bearing on diversity with respect to removal.  See 28 U.S.C. § 1441(b) (“citizenship 

of defendants sued under fictitious names shall be disregarded”).  Accordingly, no named defendant is a 

citizen of California, in which state the Action was filed, and there is complete diversity of citizenship 

between parties. 

11. Defendants are informed and believe that plaintiff is now, and was at the time the Action 

was commenced, a citizen of the State of California within the meaning of 28 U.S.C. section 1332(a).  

(Cmplt., ¶ 8) (“Plaintiff is a resident of Concord, California.”).  For diversity purposes, a person is a 

“citizen” of the state in which he is domiciled.  Kantor v. Wellesley Galleries, Ltd., 704 F.2d 1088, 1090 

(9th Cir. 1983).  A person’s domicile is the place he resides with the intention to remain or to which she 

intends to return.  Kanter v. Warner-Lambert Co., 265 F.3d 853, 857 (9th Cir. 2001). 

The Proposed Class Members Number at Least 100 

12. Plaintiff defines his proposed class as “[a]ll employees who were or are employed by 

Defendants during the Class Period (The Class Period is the period from four years prior to the filing of 

this action through and including the date judgment is rendered in this matter) in California as ‘non-

exempt employees.’”  (Cmplt., ¶ 30.)  The Complaint asserts that the putative class “includes potentially 

hundreds of members.”  (Id., ¶ 32.) 

13. Since April 15, 2015, defendants employed at least 19,680 non-exempt employees in 

positions in the State of California.  (Barbary Decl., ¶ 9.)  Accordingly, the requirement that the 

proposed class members number at least 100 is easily satisfied. 

/// 
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4 NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION 
U.S.D.C., N.D. Cal., No. _________________ 

 

The Amount in Controversy Exceeds $5,000,000 

14. A notice of removal “need include only a plausible allegation that the amount in 

controversy exceeds the jurisdictional threshold.”  Dart Cherokee Basin Operating Co. v. Owens, 135 S. 

Ct. 547, 549 (2014).  “[T]he amount-in-controversy allegation of a defendant seeking federal-court 

adjudication should be accepted when not contested by the plaintiff or questioned by the court.”  Id. at 

550.  If challenged, under CAFA a removing defendant need prove by only a preponderance of the 

evidence that the amount in controversy exceeds $5,000,000.  Rodriguez v. AT&T Mobility Servs. LLC, 

728 F.3d 975, 981 (9th Cir. 2013) (“A defendant seeking removal of a putative class action must 

demonstrate, by a preponderance of evidence, that the aggregate amount in controversy exceeds the 

jurisdictional minimum.”).  A preponderance of the evidence requires that a defendant demonstrate that 

“it is more likely than not” that the amount in controversy satisfies the jurisdictional minimum.  Abrego 

Abrego v. Dow Chem. Co., 443 F.3d 676, 683 (9th Cir. 2006) (citing and quoting Sanchez v. 

Monumental Life Ins. Co., 102 F.3d 398, 404 (9th Cir. 1996)).   

15. Under the removal statute, “[i]n any class action, the claims of the individual class 

members shall be aggregated to determine whether the matter in controversy exceeds the sum or value 

of $5,000,000, exclusive of interest and costs.”  28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(6). 

16. Here, plaintiff alleges, among other things, that “Defendants regularly failed to pay 

Plaintiff and members of the Terminated Sub Class their final wages pursuant to California Labor Code 

§§ 201-203, and accordingly owe waiting time penalties pursuant to California Labor Code § 203.”  

(Cmplt., ¶ 61.)  Plaintiff further asserts that “Defendants’ willful failure to pay wages due and owing 

them upon separation from employment results in a continued payment of wages up to thirty (30) days 

from the time the wages were due.”  (Id., ¶ 63.)  Plaintiff purports to bring this claim on behalf of 

himself and all “non-exempt employees” who worked for Sodexo in California and “whose employment 

ended during the Class Period.”  (Id., ¶ 30.)  Plaintiff seeks to recover “waiting time penalties as to those 

class members who quit or have been discharged, pursuant to California Labor Code § 203.”  (Id., 

Prayer for Relief, ¶ 6.)   

17. Three statutory provisions detail the requirements for pay upon termination in the State of 

California.  California Labor Code section 201 provides that if an employer discharges an employee, it 
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5 NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION 
U.S.D.C., N.D. Cal., No. _________________ 

 

must pay the employee the wages earned and unpaid at the time of discharge.  Labor Code section 202 

provides that if an employee quits his or her employment, an employer must pay the employee’s final 

wages not later than 72 hours thereafter, and on the day of termination if the employee has given 72 hour 

previous notice of his or her intention to quit.  Labor Code section 203 imposes waiting-time penalties in 

the amount of an employee’s daily wages up to a maximum of 30 days for violations of sections 201 and 

202.  Cal. Lab. Code §§ 201-203. 

18. A claim for waiting-time penalties is governed by the same statute of limitations as the 

underlying wage claim, i.e., three years.  Cal. Lab. Code § 203(b); Cal. Code Civ. Proc. § 338(a); Pineda 

v. Bank of Am., N.A., 50 Cal. 4th 1389, 1401 (2010) (holding that three-year statute of limitations under 

Code of Civil Procedure section 338(a) applies to Labor Code section 203 claims).  Therefore, the 

limitations period for plaintiff’s waiting-time penalties claim began on April 15, 2016 (i.e., three years 

before plaintiff filed the Complaint on April 15, 2019).  

19. From April 15, 2016, to May 3, 2019 (the end date for this analysis), at least 14,801 non-

exempt employees in California have separated from employment with defendants.  (Barbary Decl., 

¶ 10.)  Of these 14,801 separated employees, 7,156 were full-time employees who, on average, worked 

7.81 hours per day at an hourly wage rate at the time of termination of $14.62, id., ¶ 11, and 7,645 were 

part-time employees who, on average, worked 6.47 hours per day at an hourly wage rate at the time of 

termination of $12.62, id., ¶ 12. 

20. Accordingly, if, as plaintiff alleges, defendants violated Labor Code sections 201 and 202 

with respect to non-exempt employees whose employment terminated during the applicable limitations 

period, his claim for alleged unpaid waiting-time penalties would be $43,239,383.28, calculated as 

follows: 

a. For separated full-time non-exempt employees: $24,512,634.69 ($14.62/hour 

(average hourly rate) x 7.81 hours (average hours daily) x 30 days x 7,156 

(number of separated full-time non-exempt employees)).  (Barbary Decl., ¶ 13.) 

b. For separated part-time non-exempt employees: $18,726,748.59 ($12.62/hour 

(average hourly rate) x 6.47 hours (average hours daily) x 30 days x 7,645 

(number of separated part-time non-exempt employees)).  (Barbary Decl., ¶ 14.) 
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6 NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION 
U.S.D.C., N.D. Cal., No. _________________ 

 

c. Total for all separated non-exempt employees: $43,239,383.28 ($24,512,634.69 + 

$18,726,748.59).  (Barbary Decl., ¶ 15.) 

21. Since the foregoing analysis looks only at one of five claims brought by plaintiff for 

class-wide damages and penalties, there is no question that the amount in controversy in this action 

easily exceeds $5,000,000, exclusive of costs and interest. 

22. In setting forth this calculation, defendants do not admit that they are liable to plaintiff 

and the putative class in this amount or any amount.  On the contrary, defendants deny that they are 

liable to plaintiff and the putative class in any amount and for any relief. 

23. Based on the foregoing, all requirements under 28 U.S.C. section 1332(d) are satisfied 

and the Action may be removed to this Court on grounds of diversity of citizenship jurisdiction under 

CAFA.  

Dated:  May 16, 2019. 
 

JEFFREY D. WOHL  
ZINA DELDAR 
PAUL A. HOLTON  
PAUL HASTINGS LLP 

By:        /s/ Jeffrey D. Wohl 
Jeffrey D. Wohl 

Attorneys for Defendants 
Sodexo, Inc., and SDH Education West, LLC 
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SUPERIORCOURT FORTHESTATE OF CALIFORNIA 

---:-- __ ...::::-·COl:J-NTY-OFCONTllA-COST:A-:--=- -- -- - -

ANTONIO LAR,( CERRANO, on his 
own behalf and on behalfof all others 
similarly situated, 

Plaintiffs, 

V. 

SODEXO, INC., a Delaware corporation; 
SDH EDUCATION WEST, LLC, a 
Delaware LLC; and DOES 1 through 100, 
inclusive, 

Defendants. 

- CASE NO. 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR: 

1. Violation of Labor Code §246 
2. Failure to Pay Vacation Wages 

3. Wage Statement Violations 
4. Failure to Pay Wages at Time of 

Termination (California Labor Code §§ 
201-203) 

5. Unfair Business Practices (B & P Code§ 

17200) 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
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Plaintiff Antonio Lara Cerrano (hereinafter referred to as "Plaintiff ' ), hereby 

2 submits his Class Complaint against Sodexo, Inc., a Delaware Corporation; and Does 1-100 

3 (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Defendants") on behalf of himself and the class of 

4 all other similarly situated cunent and former employees of Defendants as follows: 

5 INTRODUCTION 

6 I. This class action is within the Court's jurisdiction under California Labor 

7 Code §§ 201-203, 226a, 227.3, 246(i) , 1174, 1194, 1197, 1197 .1, 1199, and 2699; California 

8 Business and Professions Code § 17200, et seq. (Unfair Practices Act). 

9 2. This complaint challenges systemic illegal employment practices resulting in 

Jo violations of the California Labor Code, California Business and Professions Code, against 

11 employees of Defendants . 

12 3. Plaintiff seeks relief on behalf of himself and the members of the putative 

13 class as a result of employment policies, practices and procedures more specifically 

14 described below, which violate the California Labor Code, and the orders and standards 
- -· 

15 promulgated by the California Department of Industrial Relations, Industrial Welfare 
. . 

16 Commission, and Division of Labor Standards, and which have resulted in the failure of 

17 Defendants to pay Plaintiff and the members of the putative class all wages due to them. 

l8 Said employment policies, practices and procedures are generally described as follows: 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

a. 

b. 

C. 

4 . 

Failed to pay Plaintiff and the members of the putative class all appropriate 

wages; 

Failed to pay Plaintiff and the members of the putative class all wages owed 

at termination; 

Failed to provide Plaintiff and members of the putative class with appropriate 

paychecks. 

Plaintiff is informed and believes and based thereon alleges Defendants have 

engaged in, among other things a system of willful violations of the California Labor Code, 

California Business and Professions Code, and applicable IWC wage orders by creating and 

maintaining policies, practices and customs that knowingly deny employees the above stated 

-2-
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
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rights and benefits. 

2 5. The policies , practices and customs of Defendants described above and 

3 below have resulted in unjust enrichment of Defendants and an unfair business advantage 

4 over businesses that routinely adhere to the structures of the California Labor Code, and 

5 California Business and Professions Code. 

6 JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

7 6. The Court has jurisdiction over the violations of the California Labor Code 

8 §§ 201 -203, 226a, 227.3, 246(i), 1174, 1194, 1197, 1197.1, 1199, and 2699; and California 

9 Business and Professions Code § 17200, et seq., (Unfair Practices Act). 

10 7. Venue is proper because the Defendants do business in California and in 

1 1 Contra Costa County and the actions that gave rise to this action occurred in Contra Costa 

12 County. 

13 PARTIES 

14 

15 

16 

8. Plaintiff is a resident of Concord, California. He is a former hourly 
-··-·--•••••---·-•m--,------- •-•-• --···-••• •• •·-• - - -

-·· -· -··· 

employee of Defendants who ceased employment for Defendant in November 2018. 

9. Plaintiff was a victim of the policies, practices and customs of Defendants 

17 complained of in this action in ways that have deprived him of the rights guaranteed to him 

l 8 by California Labor Code §§ 201-203, 226a, 227.3, 246(i) , 1174, 1194, 1197, 1197.1, 1199, 

19 
and 2699 and California Business and Professions Code § 17200, et seq., (Unfair Practices 

20 Act). 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

10. Plaintiff is infonned and believes and based thereon alleges that Defendant 

Sodexo, Inc. is a Delaware Corporation doing business in the State of California. 

Defendant's corporate address is: 4640 Admiralty Way, Marina Del Rey, California 90292. 

11. Plaintiff is informed and believes and based thereon alleges that Defendant 

SDH Education West LLC was and is, upon infonnation and belief, a Delaware LLC, with 

its executive offices in Maryland, which as designated a principal place of business in 

Bakersfield, California. It has businesses and offices throughout the State of California, 

including Contra Costa County. 

-3-
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12. Plaintiff is informed and believes and based thereon alleges that at all times 

2 herein mentioned Defendant and DOES 1 through 100, are and were corporations , business 

3 entities, individuals, and pa11nerships, licensed to do business and actually doing business in 

4 the State of California. 

5 12. As such and based upon information and belief Defendants ' business in 

6 California, Defendants are subject to California Labor Code §§ 201-203 , 226a, 227.3 , 

7 246(i), 1174, 1194, 1197, 1197.1 , 1199, and 2699 and California Business and Professions 

8 Code § 17200, et seq., (Unfair Practices Act). 

9 13. Plaintiff does not know the true names or capacities, whether individual, 

1 o partner or corporate, of the Defendants sued herein as DOES I through 100, inclusive, and 

11 for that reason, said Defendants are sued under such fictitious names, and Plaintiff prays for 

12 leave to amend this complaint when the true names and capacities are known. Plaintiff is 

13 inforn1ed and believes and based thereon alleges that each of said fictitious Defendants were 

14 responsible in some way for the matters alleged herein and proximately caused Plaintiff and 
·- ···,-- ··-·-····--- . --- -·---··-·-· ·--· 

15 members of the general public and class to be subject to the illegal employment practices, 

16 wrongs and injuries complained of herein. 

17 14. At all times herein mentioned, each of said Defendants participated in the 

18 
doing of the acts hereinafter alleged to have been done by the named Defendants; and 

19 
furthennore , the Defendants, and each of them, were the agents, servants and employees of 

20 
each of the other Defendants, as well as the agents of all Defendants, and at all times herein 

21 
mentioned, were acting within the course and scope of said agency and employment. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

15. Plaintiff is info1med and believes and based thereon alleges that at all times 

material hereto, each of the Defendants named herein were the agent, employee, alter ego 

and/or joint venturer of, or working in concert with each of the other co-Defendants and 

were acting within the course and scope of such agency, employment, joint venture, or 

concerted activity. To the extent said acts , conduct, and omissions were perpetrated by 

certain Defendants, each of the remaining Defendants confirmed and ratified said acts , 

conduct, and omissions of the acting Defendants. 

-4-
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16. At all times herein mentioned, Defendants, and each of them, were 

2 members of, and engaged in, a joint venture, partnership and common enterprise, and acting 

3 within the course and scope of, and in pursuance of, . said joint venture, partnership and 

4 common enterprise . 

5 17. At all times herein mentioned, the acts and om1ss1ons of vanous 

6 Defendants, and each of them, concurred and contributed to the various acts and omissions 

7 of each and all of the other Defendants in proximately causing the injuries and damages as 

8 herein alleged. At all times herein mentioned, Defendants, and each of them, ratified each 

9 and every act or omission complained of herein. At all times herein mentioned, the 

1 o Defendants , and each of them, aided and abetted the acts and omissions of each and all of • 

11 the other Defendants in proximately causing the damages as herein alleged. 

12 18. The members of the putative class, including the representative Plaintiff 

13 named herein, have been employed during the Class Period in California. The practices and 

14 policies which are complained of by way of this Complaint are enforced throughout the 

15 State of California. 

16 FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

19. Plaintiff incorporates all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth 

herein. 

20. This class action is brought on behalf of all California-based non-exempt 

employees who were not properly paid all wages as required by the California Labor Code. 

In addition, they were not provided with proper paychecks nor provided final wages in a 

timely manner. 

21. Plaintiff and the members of the putative class seek unpaid wages, penalties 

and other compensation from Defendants for the relevant time period because Defendants 

improperly: 

a. Failed to pay all vacation wages due; 

b. Failed to pay Plaintiff and the members of the putative class all wages owed 

at termination; 

-5-
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c. Failed to provide Plaintiff and the members of the putative class with proper 

2 paychecks pursuant to Labor Code § 226; 

3 Plaintiff alleges that the following violations occuned on a routine basis to him 

4 and the members of the putative class during their employment with Defendants: 

5 a . Sick Pay: Plaintiff alleges that on a routine basis that he and the members of 

6 the putative class did not receive sick pay. 

7 b. Unpaid Wages: Plaintiff alleges that on a routine basis that he and the 

8 members of the putative class received paychecks without proper wages in 

9 violation of the Labor Code. 

Io c. Wage Statement Violations: Plaintiff alleges that on a routine basis that he 

11 and the members of the putative class received paychecks without proper 

12 wage statements in violation of Labor Code §226. 

13 d. Termination/Final Wages: Defendants' failure to pay for all wages due 

14 prior to termination constitutes violation of Cal ifomia Labor Code § § 201-

15 203 . 

16 Defendants' Failure to Pay All Wages Due at Termination of Employment 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

22. At all times, relevant hereto, California Labor Code § 201 required an 

employer that discharges an employee to pay compensation due and owing to said employee 

immediately upon discharge. California Labor Code § 202 requires an employer to pay an 

employee who quits any compensation due and owing to said employee within seventy-two 

(72) hours of an employee's resignation. California Labor Code § 203 provides that if an 

employer willfully fails to pay compensation promptly upon discharge or resignation, as 

required under Sections 201 and 202, then the employer is liable for waiting time penalties 

in the fonn of continued compensation for up to thirty (30) work days. Defendants' failure 

to pay for all wages earned prior to tem1ination constitutes additional violations of 

California Labor Code§§ 201-203. 

23. Defendants willfully and knowingly failed to pay Plaintiff and the members 

of the putative class, upon termination of employment, all accmed compensation. 
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Facts Regarding Willfulness 

2 24. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges, that Defendants 

3 are and were advised by skilled lawyers , other professionals, employees with human 

4 resources background and advisors with knowledge of the requirements of California wage 

5 and hour laws . 

6 25 . Plaintiff is infoimed and believes, and based thereon alleges, that at all 

7 relevant times, Defendants had a consistent policy or practice of failing to properly 

8 compensate the members of the putative class, including Plaintiff. 

9 Plaintiff's Exhaustion of Administrative Remedies 

10 26. Plaintiff is cmTently complying with the procedures for bringing suit 

11 specified in California Labor Code § 2699.3. 

12 27 . By letter dated April 15, 2019, required notice to the Labor and Workforce 

13 Development Agency ("L WDA") and Defendants of the specific provisions of the 

14 California Labor Code alleged to have been violated, including the facts and theories to 
- -- -· --·---· -

15 support the alleged violations. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

28. Assuming that the L WDA declines to investigate or fails to respond to such 

notice, this Complaint will be amended when more than sixty-five (65) days have passed 

since the date the notice was mailed to Defendants and the L WDA. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

29. Plaintiff incorporates all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth 

herein. 

30. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of himself and all others similarly 

situated as a class action, pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure §382. The classes 

which Plaintiff seeks to represent are composed of, and are defined as follows: 

Plaintiff Class: 

All employees who were or are employed by Defendants during the Class 

Period (The Class Period is the period from four years prior to the filing of 

this action through and including the date judgment is rendered in this 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

matter) in California as "non-exempt employees ." As used in this class 

definition, the term "non-exempt employee" refers to those who Defendants 

have classified as non-exempt from the overtime wage provisions of the 

California Labor Code. 

Terminated Sub Class: 

All members of the Plaintiff Class, including trainees, whose 

employment ended during the Class Period (The Class Period is the 

period from four years prior to the filing of this action through and 

including the date judgment is rendered in this matter). 

(collectively "Putative Class" or "Class Members.") 

12 31. 

13 the right to 

Reservation of Rights: Pursuant to Rule of Court 3. 765(b ), Plaintiff reserves 

amend or modify the class definitions with greater specificity, by further 

14 division into sub-classes and/or by limitation to particular issues. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

32. Numerosity: The class is so numerous that the individual joinder of all 

members is impracticable. While the exact number and identification of class members are 

unknown to Plaintiff at this time and can only be ascertained through appropriate discovery 

directed to Defendants, Plaintiff is informed and believes that the class includes potentially 

hundreds of members. 

33. Commonality and Predominance: Common questions of law and fact exist 

as to all members of the class, which predominate over any questions affecting only 

individual members of the class. These common legal and factual questions, which do not 

vary from class member to class member, and which may be detennined without reference 

to the individual circumstances of any class member, include, but are not limited to, the 

following: 

a. Whether Defendants failed and continue to fail to provide appropriate 

sick and vacation wages to members of the Putative Class; 

b . Whether the members of the Putative Class that are no longer 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

34. 

employed by the Defendants are entitled to penalties pursuant to 

California Labor Code §203; 

c. Whether Plaintiff and the members of the Putative Class sustained 

damages, and if so, the proper measure of such damages, as well as 

interest, penalties, costs, attorneys' fees, and equitable relief; 

d. Whether Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and the members of the 

Putative Class wages for all vacation hours ; 

e. Whether Defendants failed to issue appropriate wage statements to 

Plaintiff and the members of the Putative Class; and 

f. Whether Defendants' conduct as alleged herein violates the Unfair 

Business Practices Act of California, Bus. & Prof Code § 17200, et 

seq. 

Typicality: The claims of the named Plaintiff are typical of the claims-of the 

members of the Putative Class. Plaintiff and the members of the Putative Class sustained 
····- -

losses, injuries and damages arising from Defendants' common policies, practices, 

procedures, protocols, routines, and rules which were applied to members of the Putative 

Classes as well as Plaintiff. Plaintiff seeks recovery for the same type of losses, injuries, 

and damages as were suffered by the members of the Putative Class. 

35. Adequacy: Plaintiff is an adequate representative of the Putative Class 

because he is a member of the classes, and his interests do not conflict with the interests of 

the members he seeks to represent. Plaintiff has retained competent counsel, experienced in 

the prosecution of complex class actions, and together Plaintiff and his counsel intend to 

prosecute this action vigorously for the benefit of the classes. The interests of the Putative 

Classes will fairly and adequately be protected by Plaintiff and his attorneys. 

36. Superiority: A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair 

and efficient adjudication of this litigation since individual litigation of the claims of all 

Putative Classes is impracticable. It would be unduly burdensome to the courts if these 

matters were to proceed on an individual basis , because this would potentially result in 
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hundreds of individuals, repetitive lawsuits. Further, individual litigation presents the 

2 potential for inconsistent or contradictory judgments, and the prospect of a "race to the 

3 courthouse," and an inequitable allocation of recovery among those with equally meritorious 

4 claims. By contrast, the class action device presents far fewer management difficulties , and 

5 provides the benefit of a single adjudication, economics of scale, and comprehensive 

6 supervision by a single court. 

7 37. The various claims asserted in this action are additionally or alternatively 

8 certifiable under the provisions of the California Code of Civil Procedure § 3 82 because: 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

a. 

b. 

The prosecution of separate actions by hundreds of individual 

Putative Class Members would create a risk or varying adjudications 

with respect to individual Putative Class Members, thus establishing 

incompatible standards of conduct for Defendants , and 

The prosecution of separate actions by individual Putative Class 

Members would also create the risk of adjudications with respect to 

them that, as a practical matter, would be dispositive of the interest of 

the other Putative Class Members who are not a party to such 

adjudications and would substantially impair or impede the ability of 

such non-party Putative Class Members to protect their interests . 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

VIOLATION OF LABOR CODE §246 

(By Plaintiff and the Members of the Putative Class Against All Defendants) 

38. 

39. 

Plaintiff incorporates herein by reference the allegations set forth above. 

Pursuant to Labor Code § 246, "An employee who, on or after July I, 2015, 

works in California for the same employer for 30 or more days within a year from the 

conunencement of employment is entitled to paid sick days as specified in this section." 

40. "An employer shall provide an employee with written notice that sets forth the 

amount of paid sick leave available, or paid time off leave an employer provides in lieu of sick 

leave, for use on either the employee's itemized wage statement described in Section 226 or in 
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a separate writing provided on the designated pay date with the employee's payment of wages. 

2 If an employer provides unlimited paid sick leave or unlimited paid time off to an employee, 

3 the employer may satisfy this section by indicating on the notice or the employee's itemized 

4 wage statement 'unlimited.' The penalties described in this article for a violation of this 

5 subdivision shall be in lieu of the penalties for a violation of Section 226. This subdivision 

6 shall apply to employers covered by Wage Order 11 or 12 of the Industrial Welfare 

7 Commission only on and after January 21, 2016." 

8 41. By their policy of failing to pay Plaintiff and others for sick pay, Defendants 

9 willfully violated the provisions of Labor Code § 246(i) . 

10 42. As a proximate result of the above-mentioned violations. Plaintiff and the 

11 members of the putative class have been damaged in an amount according to proof at time of 

12 trial. 

13 SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

14 FAILURETOPAYVACATIONWAGES 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

-··· 

(By Plaintiff and the Members of the Putative Class Against All Defendants) 

43. 

44. 

Plaintiff incorporates herein by reference the allegations set fo1ih above. 

Labor Code § 227.3 provides in pe1iinent part, " ... whenever a contract of 

employment or employer policy provides for paid vacations, and an employee is terminated 

without having taken off his vested vacation time, all vested vacation shall be paid to him as 

wages at his final rate in accordance with such contract of employment or employer policy 

respecting eligibility or time served; provided, however, that an employment contract or 

employer policy shall not provide for forfeiture of vested vacation time upon termination." 

45. Under the above-mentioned wage order and state regulations, Plaintiff and the 

members of the Putative Class are entitled to recover compensation for all hours worked, but 

not paid, for the four ( 4) years preceding the filing of this action, in addition to reasonable 

attorney's fees and costs of suit in accordance with California Labor Code § 218.5, and 

penalties pursuant to California Labor Code §203 and 206. 

46. Defendants have knowingly and willfully refused to perform their obligations to 
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compensate Plaintiff and the members of the Putative Class for all wages earned and all hours 

2 worked, in violation of state law. As a direct result, Plaintiff and the members of the Putative 

3 Class have suffered, and continue to suffer, substantia l losses re lated to the use and enjoyment 

4 of such wages, lost interest on such wages, and expenses and attorney's fees in seeking to 

5 compel Defendants to fully perform their obligation under state law, in accordance with 

6 Plaintiffs and the members of the Putative Class's respective damage amounts according to 

7 proof at time of trial. 

8 47. Defendants committed such actions alleged knowingly and willfully, with the 

9 wrongful and deliberate intention of injuring Plaintiff and the members of the putative class, 

1 o from improper motives amounting to malice, and in conscious disregard of Plaintiffs and the 

l l members of the putative class' rights. 

12 48. As a proximate result of the above-mentioned violations . Plaintiff and the 

13 members of the putative class have been damaged in an amount according to proof at time of 

14 trial. 
- - --··-·--- -

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

-· 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 
. ·- -

WAGE STATEMENT VIOLATIONS 

(By Plaintiff and the Members of the Putative Class Against All Defendants) 

49. Plaintiff incorporates all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth herein. 

50. Labor Code§ 226(a) states: 

"An employer, semimonthly or at the time of each payment of wages, shall 

furnish to his or his employee, either as a detachable part of the check, draft, or 

voucher paying the employee's wages, or separately if wages are paid by 

personal check or cash, an accurate itemized statement in writing showing (1) 

gross wages earned, (2) total hours worked by the employee, except as provided 

in subdivision U), (3) the number of piece-rate units earned and any applicable 

piece rate if the employee is paid on a piece-rate basis, ( 4) all deductions, 

provided that all deductions made on written orders of the employee may be 

aggregated and shown as one item, (5) net wages earned, (6) the inclusive dates 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

51. 

of the period for which the employee is paid, (7) the name of the employee and 

only the last four digits of his or his social security number or an employee 

identification number other than a social security number, (8) the name and 

address of the legal entity that is the employer and, if the employer is a farm 

labor contractor, as defined in subdivision (b) of Section 1682, the name and 

address of the legal entity that secured the services of the employer, and (9) all 

applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the corresponding 

number of hours worked at each hourly rate by the employee and, beginning July 

1, 2013, if the employer is a temporary services employer as defined in Section 

201.3, the rate of pay and the total hours worked for each temporary services 

assignment. The deductions made from payment of wages shall be recorded in 

ink or other indelible form, properly dated, showing the month, day, and year, 

and a copy of the statement and the record of the deductions shall be kept on file 

by the employer for at least three years at the place of employment or at a central 

location within the State of California. For purposes of this subdivision, 'copy' 

includes a duplicate of the itemized statement provided to an employee or a 

computer-generated record that accurately shows all of the information required 

by this subdivision." 

The Division of Labor Standards Enforcement ("DLSE") has sought to hannoniz 

the "detachable part of the check" provision and the "accurate itemized statement in writing" 

provision of Labor Code § 226(a) by allowing for electronic wage statements so long as eac 

employee retains the right to elect to receive a written paper stub or record and that those wh 

are provided with electronic wage statements retain the ability to easily access the informatio 

and convert the electronic statements into hard copies at no expense to the employee. (DLS 

Opinion Letter July 6, 2006). 

52. Section 226(a) of the California Labor Code requires defendants to itemize ir 

wage statements all deductions from payment of wages and to accurately report total hours 

worked by Plaintiff. Defendants have knowingly and intentionally failed to comply witl 
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Labor Code §226(a) on each and every wage statement that should have been provided to 

2 Plaintiff. By fai ling to keep adequate records as required by §§226 and 1 l 74(d) of the Labo 

3 Code , defendants have injured Plaintiff and made it difficult to calcu late the unpaid wages 

4 earned, and losses and expenditures not indemnified by defendants (including wages, interest, 

5 and penalties thereon) due to Plaintiff. 

6 53. Section 1174 of the California Labor Code requires defendants to maintain an 

7 preserve, in a centralized location, among other items, records showing the names and addresses 

8 of all employees employed, payroll records showing the hours worked daily by and the wages 

9 paid to its employees . Defendants have knowingly and intentionally failed to comply wit 

10 Labor Code§ 1174. Defendants' failure to comply with Labor Code§ 1174 is unlawful pursuan 

11 to Labor Code § 11 75. 

12 54. IWC Wage Orders 4-2001 (7), 4-2000(7), require defendants to 

13 records showing, among other things, when the employee begins and ends each work period, 

14 meal periods, split shift intervals and total daily hours worked in an itemized wage 

15 statements, and must show all deductions and reimbursements from payment of wages, an 

16 accurately report total hours worked by Plaintiff. 

17 55. Defendants violated this section as to Plaintiff and Putative Class Members b 

l 8 providing them with inaccurate and/or incomplete wage statements. Specifically, Defendant 

19 
failed to accurately specify the total regular and/or overtime hours worked, and failed to speci 

20 
the hourly rate, making it difficult to calculate total wages earned and due. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

56. Plaintiff requests relief as described herein and below. 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

FAILURE TO PAY WAGES AT TIME OF 

TERMINATION (California Labor Code§§ 201-203) 

(By Plaintiff and Members of the Terminated Sub Class Against All Defendants) 

57. 

forth herein. 

58. 

Plaintiff alleges and incorporates all preceding paragraphs as though fully set 

At all times, relevant herein, Defendants were required to pay their employees all 
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wages owed in a timely fashion during and at the end of their employment, pursuant to 

2 California Labor Code§ § 201-203. 

3 59. At all relevant times, pursuant to Labor Code § 201 , employees who have been 

4 discharged have been entitled to payment of all final wages immediately upon te1mination . 

5 60. At all relevant times, pursuant to Labor Code § 202, employees who have 

6 resigned after giving at least seventy-two (72) hours notice of resignation have been entitled to 

7 payment of all final wages at the time of resignation. 

8 61. As a pattern and practice, Defendants regularly failed to pay Plaintiff and 

9 members of the Tenninated Sub Class their final wages pursuant to California Labor Code §§ 

1 o 201-203 , and accordingly owe waiting time penalties pursuant to California Labor Code § 203 . 

11 62. The conduct of Defendants and their agents and managerial employees as 

12 described herein was willful , and in violation of the rights of Plaintiff and the individual 

13 members of the Tenninated Sub Class. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

63. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges, that Defendants' 

willful failure to pay wages due and owing them upon separation from employment results in a 

continued payment of wages up to thirty (30) days from the time the wages were due. 

Therefore, Plaintiff and the members of the Putative Class who have separated from 

employment are entitled to compensation pursuant to California Labor Code § 203 . 

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

UNFAIR COMPETITION: CALIFORNIA BUSINESS AND 

PROFESSIONS CODE§ 17200 

(By Plaintiff and the Members of the Putative Class, Against All Defendants) 

64. Plaintiff alleges and incorporates all preceding paragraphs as though fully set 

forth herein. 

65 . Section 17200 of the California Business and Professions Code prohibits any 

unlawful , unfair or fraudulent business act or practice. 

66. Plaintiff brings this cause of action in a representative capacity on behalf of the 

general public and the persons affected by the unlawful and unfair conduct described herein. 
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Plaintiff and the members of the Putative Class have suffered, and continue to suffer, injury in 

2 fact and monetary damages because of Defendants' actions. 

3 67. The actions by Defendants as herein alleged amount to conduct, which is 

4 unlawful and a violation of law. As such, said conduct amounts to unfair business practices in 

5 vio lation of California Business and Professions Code § 17200, et seq . 

6 68. Defendants' conduct as herein alleged has damaged Plaintiff and the members of 

7 the Putative Class by denying them wages due and payable, and by failing to pay all wages due 

8 in a timely manner at the time of tennination (for the Tern1inated Sub Class) . Defendants' 

9 actions are thus substantially injurious to Plaintiff and the members of the Putative Class, 

10 causing them injury in fact and loss of money. 

11 69. Because of such conduct, Defendants have unlawfully and unfairly obtained 

12 monies due to the Plaintiff and the members of the Putative Class. 

13 70. All members of the Putative Class can be identified by reference to payroll and 

14 related records in the possession of the Defendants. The amount of wages due Plaintiff and the 

15 members of the Putative Class can be readily detern1ined from Defendants' records. The Class 

16 Members are entitled to restitution of monies due and obtained by Defendants during the Class 

17 Period as a result of Defendants' unlawful and unfair conduct. 

18 71. During the Class Period, Defendants committed, and continue to commit, acts of 

19 
unfair competition as defined by § 17200, et seq., of the Business and Professions Code, by and 

20 
among other things, engaging in the acts and practices described above. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

72. Defendants' course of conduct, acts, and practices in violation of the California 

Jaw as mentioned in each paragraph above constitutes a separate and independent violation of§ 

17200, of the Business and Professions Code. 

73. The harm to Plaintiff and the members of the Putative Class of being wrongfully 

denied lawfully earned and unpaid wages outweighs the utility, if any, of Defendants' policies 

and practices and, therefore, Defendants' actions described herein constitute an unfair business 

practice or act within the meaning of Business and Professions Code § 17200. 

74. Defendants' conduct described herein threatens an incipient violation of 
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California's wage and hour laws , and/or violates the policy or spirit of such laws, or otherwise 

2 significantly threatens or hanm competition. 

3 75. Defendants' course of conduct described herein fu11her violates California 

4 Business and Professions Code § 17200 in that it is fraudulent , improper, and unfair. 

5 76. The unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent business practices and acts of Defendants as 

6 described herein-above have injured Plaintiff and the members of the Putative Class in that they 

7 were wrongfully denied the timely and full payment of wages due to them. 

8 PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

9 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and on behalf of the members of the 

1 o Putative Class, pray for judgment against Defendants as follows: 

11 1. For an order certifying the proposed Putative Class; 

12 2. For nominal damages; 

13 3. Ce11ification of this class action on behalf of the proposed Putative Class; 

14 4. Designation of Plaintiff as the class representative of the Putative Class ; 
- -- - -·· - ·-. -··-~- - ·- -···--

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

5. An award of statutory penalties pursuant to California Labor Code §§ 203, 

1174.5, and 2698-99 and California Business & Professions Code § 17206, 

subject proof at trial; 

6. An award of waiting time penalties as to those class members who quit or have 

been discharged, pursuant to California Labor Code §203, subject proof at trial; 

7. An award of restitution of all amounts owed and unpaid overtime, minimum 

wage compensation and interest thereon, in an amount to be proved at trial, 

pursuant to California Business & Professions Code § 17203; 

8. Disgorgement of profits and all other appropriate equitable relief authorized by 

California Business & Professions Code § 17203; 

9. Prejudgment and post judgment interest on all sums awarded; 

10. Attorneys' fees and litigation expenses in an amount the Court detern1ines to be 

reasonable, pursuant to California Labor Code§§ 1194 (a), 2699 (g) (1) and Cal. 

Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5 , and any other such provision as may be 
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. ---- ---

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

applicable; 

11. An award of attorneys' fees and costs, as allowed by law, including an award of 

attorneys' fees and costs pursuant to California Civil Code §§ 1785.3 l(a), 

1786.50, and California Code of Civil Procedure§ 1021.5; 

12. For penalties as permitted by the California Labor Code, and the regulations, 

standards and applicable wage orders promulgated thereunder, specifically 

including, but not limited to , penalties permitted by California Labor Code §§ 

203,226.3,226.7,510,512,512(a), 1174, 1194.2, 1194.5, 1197, 1198,2699,and 

2802; 

13. Costs of suit; and, 

14. Such other and further relief as is equitable, just, and proper. 

DATED: April 15, 2019 BRADLEY/GROMBACHER, LLP 
LAW OFFICES OF SAHAG MAJARIAN II 

···~ . 
-- - --· - ·-· -· -- . ---· 

B~ . . . 
Marcus J. Bradley, q. 1 

Kiley L. Grombacher, Esq. 
Taylor L. Emerson, Esq. 
Sahag Majarian, II, Esq. 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

JURY DEMAND 

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable as a matter of right. 

DATED: April 15, 2019 BRADLEY/GROMBACHER, LLP 
LAW OFFICES OF SAHAG MAJ ARIAN II 

By: __ ..:::__-=-~~"+-----­
Marcus J. Bradley, Es 
Kiley L. Grombacher, Esq. 
Taylor L. Emerson, Esq. 
Sahag Majarian, II , Esq. 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO COMPLETE THE COVER SHEET CM-010 

To Plaintiffs and Others Filing First Papers. If you are filing a first paper (for example, a complaint) in a civi l case. you must 
complete and file, along with your first paper, the Civil Case Cover Sheet contained on page 1. This information will be used to compile 
statistics about the types and numbers of cases filed. You must complete items 1 through 6 on the sheet. In item 1. you must check 
one box for the case type that best describes the case. If the case fits both a general and a more specific type of case listed in item 1, 
check the more specific one. If the case has multiple causes of action , check the box that best indicates the primary cause of action. 
To assist you in completing the sheet, examples of the cases that belong under each case type in item 1 are provided below. A cover 
sheet must be filed only with your initial paper. Failure to file a cover sheet with the first paper filed in a civil case may subject a party, its 
counsel, or both to sanctions under rules 2.30 and 3.220 of the California Rules of Court. 
To Parties in Rule 3.740 Collections Cases. A "collections case" under rule 3 .740 is defined as an action for recovery of money owed 
in a sum stated to be certain that is not more than $25,000, exclusive of interest and attorney's fees, arising from a transaction in which 
property, services, or money was acquired on credit. A collections case does not include an action seeking the following: (1) tort 
damages, (2) punitive damages, (3) recovery of real property, (4) recovery of personal property, or (5) a prejudgment writ of attachment. 
The identification of a case as a rule 3.740 collections case on this form means that it w ill be exempt from the general time-for-service 
requirements and case management rules, unless a defendant files a responsive pleading . A rule 3.740 collections case will be subject 
to the requirements for service and obtaining a judgment in rule 3.740. 
To Parties in Complex Cases. In complex cases only, parties must also use the Civil Case Cover Sheet to designate whether the 
case is complex. If a plaintiff believes the case is complex under rule 3.400 of the California Rules of Court, this must be indicated by 
completing the appropriate boxes in items 1 and 2. If a plaintiff designates a case as complex, the cover sheet must be served with the 
complaint on all parties to the action. A defendant may file and serve no later than the time of its first appearance a joinder in the 
plaintiff's designation, a counter-designation that the case is not complex, or, if the plaintiff has made no designation, a designation that 

the case is complex. CASE TYPES AND EXAMPLES 

Auto Tort 
Auto (22}-Personal Injury/Property 

Damage/Wrongful Death 
Uninsured Motorist (46) (if the 

case involves an uninsured 
motorist claim subject to 
arbitration, check this item 
instead of Auto) 

Other Pl/PO/WO (Personal Injury/ 
Property Damage/Wrongful Death) 
Tort 

Asbestos (04) 
Asbestos Property Damage 
Asbestos Personal Injury/ 

Wrongful Death 
Product Llabiltty (not asbestos or 

toxk:lenvlronmentaQ {24) 
Medical Malpractice (45) 

Medical Malpractice­
Physicians & Surgeons 

Other Professional Health Care 
Malpractice 

Other PI/PD/WD (23) 
Premises Liability (e.g., slip 

and fal) 
Intentional Bodily lnjury/PDM'D 

(e.g., assault, vandalism) 
Intentional Infliction of 

Emotional Distress 
Negligent Infliction of 

Emotional Distress 
Other Pl/PD/WO 

Non-Pl/PO/WO (Other) Tort 
Business TOfWnfair Business 

Practice (07) 
Civil Rights (e.g., discrimination, 

false arrest) (not cMI 
harassment) (OB) 

Defamation (e.g., slander. libel) 
(13) 

Fraud (16) 
Intellectual Property ( 19) 
Professional Negligence (25) 

legal Malpractice 
Other Professional Malpractice 

(not medical or legal) 
Other Non-Pl/PD/WO Tort (35) 

Employment 
Wrongful Termination (36) 
Other Employment (1 S) 

CM-010 (Rev. July 1. 20071 

Contract 
Breach of Contract/Warranty (06) 

Breach of Rental/lease 
Contract (not unlawful detainer 

or wrongful eviction) 
Contract/Warranty Breach-Seller 

Plaintiff (not fraud or negligence) 
Negligent Breach of Contract/ 

Warranty 
Other Breach of Contract/Warranty 

Collections (e.g. , money owed, open 
book accounts) (09) 
Collection Case-Seier Plaintiff 
Other Promissory Note/Collections 

Case 
Insurance Coverage (not provisionally 

complex) (18) 
Auto Subrogation 
Other Coverage 

Other Contract (37) 
Contractual Fraud 
Other Contract Dispute 

Real Property 
Eminent Domain/Inverse 

Condemnation (14) 
Wrongful Eviction (33) 
Other Real Property (e.g., quiet title) (26) 

Writ of Possession of Real Property 
Mortgage Foredosure 
QuletTitie 
Other Real Property (not eminent 
domain, /andlordltenant, or 
foreclosure) 

Unlawful Detainer 
Commercial (31) 
Residential (32) 
Drugs (38) (ff the case in'IOlves illegal 

drugs. check this item; otherwise, 
reporl as Commercial or Residential) 

Judicial Review 
AssetFo~eiture(05) 
Petition Re: Arbitration Award (11) 
Writ of Mandate (02) 

Writ-Administrative Mandamus 
Writ-Mandamus on Limited Court 

Case Matter 
Writ-Other limited Court Case 

Review 
Other Judicial Review (39) 

Review of Health Officer Order 
Notice of Appeal-labor 

Commissioner Appeals 

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET 

Provlslonally Complex CMI Utlgatlon (Cal. 
Rules of Court Rules 3.400-3.403) 

AntilnlsVTrade Regulation (03) 
Construction Defect (10) 
Clalms lnvoMng Mass Tort (40) 
Securities l itigation (28) 
EnvironmentaVToxic Tort (30) 
Insurance Coverage Claims 

(arising from provisionally complex 
case type listed above) (41 ) 

Enforcement of Judgment 
Enforcement of Judgment (20) 

Abstract of Judgment (Out of 
County) 

Confession of Judgment (non­
domestic relations) 

Sister State Judgment 
Administrative Agency Award 

(not unpaid taxes) 
Petition/Certification of Entry of 

Judgment on Unpaid Taxes 
Other Enforcement of Judgment 

Case 
Miscellaneous Civil Complaint 

RICO (27) 
Other Complaint (not specified 

above)(42) 
Dedaratory ReUef Only 
Injunctive Relief Only (non-

harassment) 
Mechanics lien 
Other Commercial Complaint 

Case (non-tortlnon-<:0mp/ex) 
Other Civil Complaint 

(mm-ton/non-<:ampfe,c) 

Miscellaneous Civlt Pet.ltlon 
Partnership and Corporate 

Governance (21 ) 
Other Petition (not specified 

above)(43) 
Civil Harassment 
Workplace Violence 
Elder/Dependent Adult 

Abuse 
Election Contest 
Petition for Name Change 
Petition for Relief from late 

Claim 
Other Civi Petition 
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........ ... . •, 

I 

Superior Court of CaUfornia, County of Contra Costa 

UNLIMITE·D JURISDICTION 

Civil Actions 

PACKET. 

What you will find in this packet: 

• Interpreter Request (MC-300e&s) 

• Notice To Plaintiffs (CV-655&-INFO). 

• Notice To Defendants (CV-655d-lNFO) 

• ADR Casa Management Stipulati~n and Order {CV--655b) 

• Case Management Statement (CM-11 D) 

• Altamatfw Dispute Resolution (ADR) lnfonnatlon (CV~5CrlNFO) 

You Can Get Court Forms FREE at: www.cc~courts.org/forms 
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Superior Court of California, County of Contra Costa 

lnterpr:,tgr Request 

If you need an interpreter, please complete the form below and submit It to any FHing Window or 
courtroom. . 

Case-Number:----------

ca..Type: 

D Criminal 

OTrafflc . 

D Civil Harassment 

D Conservatorshlp 

D Proceedings to terminate parental ~h1B 

D DeJM,ndent Adult Abuse 

OJuvanile 

D Small ClairM- ($10,000 or less) 

D Civil - D $25,000 0 over $25,000 

0 Cfvil-other ________ _ 

D Famllylaw 

D Unlawful Detainer 

D Guardianship 

08derAbuse 

Party Requesting Interpreter. __________________ _ 

Is Interpreter for a wttness? D Yes. 0 No 

Phone Number(s) where party can be reached: --------------.-
t 

Date of Hearing: -------- - Time of Hearing:------
Department ___ Location: D Martinez D Pittsburg O Richmond D Walnut Creek 

language Needed_: D Spanish D Mandarin D Cantonese O Vietnamese 

D other:--------------

To avoid the risk that )'Our hearing will have to be pos1poned, please submit thfs fom, a 
minimum of one week In a(lvance. 

ClffBnt lnfonnatJon about this program Is available at ·our website: 
·WNW.CC;:<X>Yrts.org/jn~ 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA 

ADR·Cge lfan,ameat Stipulation Ind Ordtt: 
(UnHmlted Jur&dlctlon CMJ Cues) 

CASE NO: _ _____ _ 
Dlandant(•) / era. Darandanl(•) 

,.. ALLPARTIESSTIPUlAT1NGTOAPRANODBAYINGTHEIRCASE~C0NFERENCE90DAYS 
MUST SUBMIT ntE ORDER FOR 'ffll! JUDGl!'8 IIGNATURB AND FILE Til8 FORII AT ll!AST 15 DAY& 
BEFORE nfEJR CASE IIANAOl!lll!NT CONFERENCE. (NOT AVALABLe IN COMPLEX Lm~TION CASES.) 

,.. PARTIES MUST ALSO SEND A COPY OF THIS fl& STIPULATION AND ORDER TO 1ltE ADR OFACE: 
EMAIL eww,t,Ocon!cPf'!le&PYdl,ca.gov FAX: (925) 808-2108 MAIL: P.O. BOX 911 , MARTINEZ, CA 94553 

Counsel and all partlN auree to delay their c:aae rnanqe,Ml1t C"Ord'w9ca to days to attend ADR and camp,-. p,-. 
A.DR diaccwely. followa: 

1. Selec;Qon ,nd fCheduQng fprAllpmattyp Pw9Y1P BtfOMkxJ CAQB>: 
· a. The 1*t1e1 have agreed to AOR • folowa: 

L C Mediation (0 Court~•-.:ted O Prlwtlt) 
I. Cl ·M>fn11on (C Judicial Arbitnltion (non-binding) Q PrMltll (non-bb:ing) 0 · Private (blndirl1)) 
II. a Neutral cue evaluation 

b. Toe ADR neutral shall be seleded by (dam): (no more than 14 days &ltet fling this fbnn) 
c. AOR lhal be completllld by (da)': · (no ITIOl9 than 80 days efter trlng this form) 

2. Tue Pdlt wD cgmpfet, tht folcMfna sllm-n! plan: 
a. a Wrlltlln dilcxMfy. (CJ Adcltlonal page(a) abched) 

L O lrdemlgalDriea to: 
l O Request for Produdlon d Documents ID: 
II. 0 Requeat for AdmlNlons lo: 
Iv. Cl lndepe11dwUledlcal Evalualan of: 
v. a Othwr: 

t,. a Depallllon of the tobtAng parties or wllneaes: (0 Addlional page(a) atladled) !. ___ _ _ ______ _____________ _ __ _ 

··---- ---------- --- ------ --- --il ___________ _________________ _ 

c. a No Pre-AOR dllccMpry needed 

3. The parties alloagree: ---- - - ------- - - ----------

-4. Cotnel and self~ paJtlea 1'9preeeni they .. r.na.r with and wll fuiy con1)ly with all local court .,... relaled to 
ADR ae Pl'owted In l11le Three; ~ 5, wffl P1Y lhe tw apodlW wlh #mt H!Ylcet, and undeistmid that I they do 
not, wlhout good came, comply with thla ltipuldon and al !'99Val1t local caurt rdN, l1llly may be subject to .-ncllona. 

Coi.1-.ei far ""*1111 (ptWJ fsx CCU*I tar°**'! OrilO 
·1 

Fmt ...... ...... 
! eoun-1 fur Plllnm (p'*1(I Fa CluN b' Dlfl,,ldllilt (priltJ Fe ....... 11\,11111,P 

PurPrlt to the Sllpuldon cl tie parties, Md ~ to the Cese ~ Qderto be fflad, rr II SO ORDERs;, that 
the C- Management Confwence Nl for Ir. VIIClted and reechlcllled for at 
cs:30 Lm. , > rlllo#ff, PIIIDlff• cpynN1 mm notify,.,..., 9' ._,,. rw CPIOIAIIDIPI QOIJf-,nce. 

Dallcl=-~--~~--~-
Judge oll lhe Superior Court 
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..... _ 
( 

CM,.110 
' ATTORHE'f OR PM:fYW"lllOVT ATTO~ (N,ma, si.19 /w~ ltld ~ RJR COi.RT USE O#I. y 

., 
TELEPHONE NO; FAANO.~ 

E.MAl. AOOfES8 ro,,,a,,ae: 

AT1'0ftNl!'f l'Oft ~ 

SUPBtlOR COURT OF CAI.WORNIA, COUN'TY,OF 
8'T1UiET ADDREBlt 

lilMlNO H)l)IU!8lt 

an' NC) 'Dfl CCICE: 

IIAANCIC NME: 

PlAJNTFFIPETITIONER: 

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT: - ,_ ·- - --··' " .. .. ~ .. . . 
CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT ~~ 

' 
·1 (Check one): . .rt:J: UNLIIIIIITED CASE D UlllTEI) CA.SE 

(Amount demanded (Amourt demanded Is $25,000 
sxceeda $25,000) orleu) 

-· - " . .. .. . -· 
A CASE MANAGEMENT CON~ la sdleduled as follows: 

: Data: llme: Dept_; Div.: Room: I 

· Addresa of court (r ciffflrant from the adchss IJbow): 

CJ Notice of lnllnt to Appear by Telephone, by (nanN): 

INSTRUCTIONS: AH appllca9- box-. must be checbd. and 1he •pilCifled Information must be pnmcled. 

1. Pmty or pa,11• (an.,wr one): 
a. D Thia atadement 1s albritted t,y party (flllmeJ: 
b. D Thia slalament la arJmttad JolntlJ by partlu (,,.,,,..): 

2. Complaint and c:rou.complalnt (lo~ Sll8WfJf9d by pleJnft and croa-complalnanta only) 
a. The complalnt waa filed on (dtlta): 
b. CJ The a'Dll$-OOl'l'l)!aslt, if any, was tved on (date): 

3. Service (lo be 8118W8f&d by plakrlil(a and~ only) 

a. CJ All partlea named In the c:omplmt and rma-a,mplalnt haw! been served, have appeared, or have been dlamlaaed. 
b, D Toe followtng pa,t1ea named 1n t1io comp1a1ri or ~nt 

(1) D have not been aerwd (Bf)fdy f111tfm.and flXplelr, why not): 

(2) D have been eervad bul have not appeared and tmve not been dlemlsaed (apeclly n«ner): 

{3) D h«w had a default entered against them (~ names): 

c. D n. following addit1cna1 ~ mar be added lapec:lly nanJN, nature at 1nvo1vement 1n caae. and dafe by wtik:h 
they may bs served): 

4, DNc:rlplion of caee 
a. Type of cw In D wmplainl D ~ 

CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

' 
' 
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[_PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: r ~NUMIIC/t 1 
peFEN._ ___ DANT __ JR_ES_PO_N_D_ENT_· -=--- - - ---- ---- - - ---'----------- ---..l~ 

CM-110 

10. c. lndlcata the ADR process or procesaea that the party or partie. are wling to partlciP,ate in, have agree<! to par11dpale In. or 
haYe already partlclpaled In (check al that apply llnd /J('C1'flPI IJ» specified ~tlon}: 

The par1y « pstlN co~ If h party or J*Ues ~ 1h11 fon'n In the case have agreed to 
1- fonn .. wlllnQ 1o ~ In or haw anedy corr1)lelld tn ADR prooess or proca11ee, 
paticipate ki the followtrG AOR lndlclll8 h ttatua cf the p,ooesw (elfacll a copy af tti. pertiN' ADR 
ProceAa (check al that appt;J:: dp4.Rttk,n): 

D · Med•lon ....ion notyetactiec1u1ecS 
. 

D D Mediation ....ion~ for {date): 
~1) ~ation 

CJ ~to~ mediation by (da19): 

D Meclallon ~ on (dlo): 

.. CJ s.tllement confwance not yet echeduled 

(2) SeUtenwd D D s.us.m.nt oocd'enM IC8 ICheduled u (de): 
ODllllwence D Agreed to oomplebt -~ conterenoe by (dale): 

CJ SellUarMnt coniDrence ~ on (date): 

CJ Neutral evaluallon not yet adlecluled 

D D Neutral IMllua&on ICh9llt,ed for (cat.): . 
(3) Neutral IMlluatlon 

D Agreed ID compWa neutral evaltallon by (date): 

D · Nautral evaluaalon compl.e.d on (dl6t): 

D JucDclal arbltnlllon not yet ac:hecklled 

D Judlolal arbllrdon ICheduled for (dlt&): (4) Nonbindingjudiclal D 
arbitralon D Agreed to cor,..,i.te judicial arbhtlon by (di*): 

. 
D Judlc:iaJ mbibdol, ~on(~~ 

CJ Privalt artJr.iadMI not yet ec::heclJled 

D Pr1vaie 8Jblbalbn scheduled for (datB): (5) Binding prt\lale D 
atblrdon D Agnied to CCJi, iple4ie priYatB art>llrdon by (dlt'9): 

CJ Prtvata arbllnlllon oompletlld on (dalll): 

D ADR NUlon noty.t~ 

Cl Cl ADR Nnlon acheduled for (date):· 
(8) Otta (,pecl'y): 

D Aomed to con1)We AOR seelion by (date): . 
D ADR m , iplellld on (deal): 

; 
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~ PlAlNTIFFIPETITIONE!t 

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT.: 

17. Economic litigation 

r 

a. D Thia la• llmbd civil case (i.e., the amount demanded Is $25,000 or lea$) and the economic litigation~ In Code 
of Civil Procedln sediona 90-98 wll apply to 1h11 CIIN. 

b •. ·D Thia Is a llmltad civi case a,nd a mollcn ID withdraw tt,e cue from the economic lltigatlon prooecbea or for addlllonal 
di8cxMtry wil be filed (If ohecklKJ, explai> ~ why economlr; IJtlgatJori procedurea 18laq to cf&loo\l8ry or trial 
ahould not apply lo thJB Clf98): · 

18. Other lssua 
D Toe party or parties nt~ that the followlng addtional 11\dn be ~ or delBnnined at the cue manages,ient 

comerenoe(~: . • -

19. lleet and.comr 
a. D The pwty or parties haYa met and conferred with al partie9 on al ~ raqured by rule 3.724 of the California Rulo8 

of Court (If 11«, explain): 

b. Mer meeting and comantng u l1lqlirlld ~ rule 3. 724 of the Cadomia Ru1ea of Court. the parties agree on hi folowfng 
(.,.cl(yJ: 

20. Total number of pages attached (If anyJ.' __ _ 

I em~ famliarwilt'I 1h11 cue and will be fuly prepared to~ the alatua of claQovery and albimatlYe dispute reeolution, 
• wet aa other laauee raiNd by 1hla atatament, and W!I poaees the IUlharily tc ent.r lnlD stiptJletlons on hee _,. at jhe time of 
the Cll88 management confanince, lncblng the wr1llen allltlOrity of the party Yffl8l'9 raqulred. 

Data: 

t CASE MANAGEMENT STATEIIIENT "-'9hfl 
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h PWNTIFF""""10NElt. 

OEFENDANTIRESPOHOENT: 

11. lnaurance .· 
a. D lnsll1lnce earner, If any, for party filing this atatemrri (name): 
b. R....-vatlonofrights; D Yes D No 
c. D CcMlr1lu~ IS8Uel will algnificanUy aft'8ot resclutlon of this case (explaln): 

12: Jurlldlctlon 
lndlcala fllfY mdln thatmey affect the coult'a Jurisdiction or prooeaa,g ctthll caae and ducribe the status. 
D Bankruptcy CJ Other (tpeeily): 

Stdus: 

13. Related -=-, ~ldllllon, and coord1nallon 
L D There an, COf'l'f*llon. ~. or,releted cu•. 

(1) Name of cae: 
(2) Name ol cxut 
(3) c-number, 
( 4) S1lllua: 

D Adllllonal cuee ara delalled .-i Albdwnent 13a. 

b. D A mottan lo . D coneolldllto D cootdnalll wll be tled11y (ntllJJe party): 

14.8ffurclldon 
D Tho paty or par1lea Intend k> Ille a motion for an order blfurc:atlr-G, aevertng, or~ 1he fglowtng l8aues or c:aaaes r:I 

action (apec#y momg ~ t)P(t d mo6ln; and....,,,.): 

15. Ottl!lt motions 
CJ Thi party Of pat1laa upect to tie tht fallowlng rnoCiora befont. b'1al (speclly momg parly, l)ipe of motion. end,_,_): 

' . 

18. Dlllcovary 
a. D 111e party« par11e& have comp1Nc1 au c19a:MN:y. . 

b. D Toe foDowiliQ ciscovery w1r be comp18*1 t,y lhe c:1a1a apecllled (dNcri,e a1 tt11t1c1peted cJseove,yJ: 
f!m Qnq1pCion ~ 

CASE MANAGEMENT STATEIENT f!llehfl 

:.-
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L PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: I ""'"""' CM-l10I 
I DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT: - . 

D (1f mote s,-oe 1s needed, check 1111s box anc1 attach a,,. des(gniiled as ~ment "'·> 
5. Jury or non,lwy 1ltal 

The ptlrty or pt1ltiel reqoeilt D a jury trtal CJ • "°'*'ry 1nal. (II mont then or» pMt.y. prrNfde the name of eacl'1 ptJtty 
requet/t/nrl • jury lrlel): 

S. Trllll cl* 
L D The trial ha been .. for (date): . ., 
b. D No trial dala haa been set. Thia cue wt be ready for trial "1thtt 12 manh of Che date of the fling of the complaint (f 
~~ 

7. Eainmd length of trial 
The party or partiee ..,_ that the tl1al wll tau (chide or»): 

a. D dllya (tpeal'f runbtlt1:· 
b. D hows Clhort--.)(~: 

8. Trial Nfll-iibitbl (lo "91WW819d loreac:h ptllty) 
Toe party Qf part1M w111,e ~dad at 1rt111 D b1 it.~ or party 11111ec1 1n the c:ap11on D by the~: 
L NtDrrwlf'. 
b. Finn: 
C. ~ : 

d. Taephocie runber. f. Fax runber: 
e. E-mal addrw: g. Party repn,18n11ect 
D . Addllonal rep aeen11111on • deea1bed 1n Attac:hmert a. . 

9. P,..,_ice 
D Th• caae II entitled lo pietarence (spedy oodfl aec:tlon); 

10. AbmlllM ca.pu1a rw1ludon (ADR) 

a. ADR lnfonndon pacbge. Pie..- note thllt cifferwlt ACR proceeees are avaJlable 1n c:lff9rent ou18 and COfflMWliea; rad 
h ADR ~ d'onna&n paclcaae prowlded by the court under nlle 3.221 for lnformaticrr about lhe proc 111 • IMllable through the 
court and ootrmmly pnigrama In thla caae. 

(1) Far J*1k- re..,...."9cl by eo&net CouNel D has D has not provided 1he ADR lrlot 11.aticxa package identifled 
In rule 3.221 to the c:lent and mfeMd ADR optlarw wlh the clllri. ' 

(2) For self ....-.i patlae; Party D ha D ha not rwilwed 1he ADR lnbmallon package ldentllieCI In rule 3.221. 

b. IWarTal to juclclal ablba6uu or cfwl action nMlallon (I available). · 
(1) CJ Th• rnaa.r- II .utllect lo~~ 8lblnllon under Com of Clvll Procectute eealon 1141.1 Sor to cMI action 

mediation undw Code of CM~ Mdlatl 1775.3 ....... ~ In contlCMnj does notaooed 1111 
~lmlt. 

CZ) D Plalnllff aleca to "'9r lhla a1111 to Judldal •br.laloi, and ag,w to llmll recovery lo the amount IS)eCffled In COde of 
CM1 Procedure~ 1141.11; 

(3) D 1Na cae II --,pt 1h>m Judlcill arbhdon "* Ml 3.811 of the Cdbnla Rulee of Cwtor from cM ICllon 
medlaaon undw Code afCM Proc9ckn -*-11775 et aq. (a,:,ecly ~): 

CASE IIANAGEIIENT STATBENT 

) J , ... ; . ..:....• 
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Y!HAI KN> of RESPONSES CAN I FILE? . . 
1. If you disagree with some or all of what the pfalnttff says In the cx,mplalnt because you believe, or 

know it Is not true, you can file an ANSWER, 
2. ff you have a claim In the same case against the plaintiff, you may ffle a CROSS-COMPLAINT. 
3. If yott want to ask the court to do something on your behalf, you_ may 1Ue a MOTION (See TYPES OF 

MOTIONS below) 

HQW DQ I PREPARE AN AN8WER? 
There are~ ki.!lds o( AnlWlifs you can uee, depending on whelhet the ca,,pla1nt was vartflecL-You can 1811 ~ a 
Complurtla wtffled becaule l says "Verffled Compklinr midfor ha a signed oath .m the last page . . 
For c:omplalnla that.,. NOT verffled: 

Uae Judicial Ca.sd fonn PLD-0!50 - General Denial 

For complalnla that ARI! v.lffled: 
~ . . 

a. For pereonal~~ ~ damage. and wrongful death dakne, use Judk:ial Colma1 PLD-Pl-003 
' {~nmcheckn 2). - . 

HJ : For contract dalms. use Judicial Cotllcl PU>-C-010 (do !!2t check number 3a)r 
I • 

c.. Be aura .1o deny~ cllfm with which )'OU~- For~. you might wrtte: ? bellwe, or know, 
that the'/nfolmatlon fl~#_•~• Comirue your 11st untB you haw addre11ed 
each paragraph In 1he Cornpla1nt 

NOTE: Ttle Judk:lal · Ooll'\C:il AnNer forms haw spaces for your afflm llltlYe defense&. Be sure tohJude them or you 
may not be at,6 t> UN ttan later .. To find c,\j what your afftrmatlw did1Nw might be, got> the law lbwy and ask 
the 8brwian to help yo(J find the i1fonnatlon you need. 

If you want to tlle a ~plalnt, you mu.t do so at 1he.,,. time you fl1e the Anlaw9r. 

--.:: For a peraonel r,.i,y, property damage, and/or~ death Cron-Complalrt, use Judicial Councll form 
Pl.D.f>f~~ ... 

b. For a ca itract Crou-CQmplalnt. uee Judicial Councl PLD-C-001. 

TYPES Qf, MOTIQNS 
Wrflten rnotfons.are documenta that 111k the cowt to do aome1hlng. You may haw to ffle an Answer at 1he same ti~ 
M. this point In ~~. you can only make Motlont from the followlng 1st V 

1... Deml11"81' (the fa<i.1 atated In the oomplelnt 819 wrong, or the dNdlrJe to fie the lawsuit ha paaecl)-, 

2. . Motm to §trike (the~~ Is pnclear; do8' noifol<NI the Jaw, "doesn"l mattv, 'etc.); 
3. Motbt 1p Transfer (fbe c;onpat,t Is In the M'Df1S1 court or IINw'a a f710f8 app,opn,te court); 
4. Motb) 1R9Nb Saryige ol SllJJDOOS O'OU WW8 not /efJIIY 88IWKf); 
5. MRtlort 1D Stay (put the caae on hold); or 
6. MotiQp tp D'llfiiia (atopa the oae). 

NOTE: Motlol• .. Wl'Y compllcatad and you may want to hlra a llwy9r to help you, 
• . . 

WHERE CAN I GET MORE HELP7 
• Lawyw R.mmll Service: (925) 82S6700 · 
• ~Area,~Ald: (800)551-65&4 
• Contra C08ta Cow1ty Law Ubnry M811tl iez. (925} 646-2783 Richmond: (510)374-3019 
• Ask the Law Ubrutan: www.247ref.~_law3.cfrn 
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Superior Court of California, County of Contra Costa 

Sollc;ltud Para lot'!:Pfete 

SI neoesita un lnterp~, favor oompletar esta formulario y preaentarlo ~n cualquier ventanlUa 
para archiver documentos o con la secretaria del trt>unal 

NOmero de Caso: ____ _ _ __ _ 

Tipo de Caso: .. 

0 Criminal 

OTnffloo 

OhXJSOCMI 

D Conservador 

0 Casos para Tamtnar Der8chos de 
Madre o Padre 

.. 0 Abuso de Aduttos lncapadtados 

D Tribual de Menores 

0 Oemanda CMI - ($10,000 o menos) 

D Demanda Civil -
D $25,000 0 m6a de $25.000 

D CMl-otro tlpo ___ _ _ 

0 Casos de FamlJla 

0 Julck> de Desalojo 

0Tutela 

D ~ de Penon&$ Mayoras 

Persona que Neceslta Interpret&: -----------------

0 Marque aquf el ~ persona ee un 1astlgo 

NlmeroTelef6nlco: ____________________ _ 

Fecha de la Audiencia Judicial:-------
Hora: ______ _ 

Departmento: Cfudad: 0 Martinez: 0 Pittsburg O Rk:hmond O Walnut Creek 

ldfoma Solicttado: D Espanol D Mandarin D Cantones O Vletnamlta 

D 0tro lqloma: ----- -------

Para 8Yltar la poslblt1d~ que au audlencia see aplazeda, favor the presec rtar aste fonnulario al 
menos una semana antes de la fecha de au audJencla. 

lnformeci6n actuallzada acerca de aste servicio se encuentra en nuestra pAglna web: 
www.co-courts.orq/lnten>ret8r 
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JS-CAND 44 (Rev. 06/17)         CIVIL COVER SHEET
The JS-CAND 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law,  
except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved in its original form by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the Clerk of 
Court to initiate the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.) 

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS 

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff
 (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant 
(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE:      IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF 
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED. 

(c) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) Attorneys (If Known) 

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X” in One Box Only) III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff 

1  U.S. Government Plaintiff 3  Federal Question 
(U.S. Government Not a Party) 

2  U.S. Government Defendant 4  Diversity 
(Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III) 

 (For Diversity Cases Only)  and One Box for Defendant)  
PTF DEF PTF DEF

Citizen of This State 1 1 Incorporated or Principal Place 4 4 
of Business In This State 

Citizen of Another State 2 2 Incorporated and Principal Place 5 5 
of Business In Another State 

Citizen or Subject of a 3 3 Foreign Nation 6 6 
Foreign Country 

IV. NATURE OF SUIT   (Place an “X” in One Box Only) 
CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES 

110 Insurance 
120 Marine 
130 Miller Act 
140 Negotiable Instrument 
150 Recovery of 

Overpayment Of 
Veteran’s Benefits 

151 Medicare Act 
152 Recovery of Defaulted 

Student Loans (Excludes 
Veterans) 

153 Recovery of 
Overpayment 

  of Veteran’s Benefits 
160 Stockholders’ Suits 
190 Other Contract 
195 Contract Product Liability 
196 Franchise 

REAL PROPERTY 
210 Land Condemnation 
220 Foreclosure 
230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 
240 Torts to Land 
245 Tort Product Liability 
290 All Other Real Property 

PERSONAL INJURY 
310 Airplane 
315 Airplane Product Liability 
320 Assault, Libel & Slander 
330 Federal Employers’ 

Liability 
340 Marine 
345 Marine Product Liability 
350 Motor Vehicle 
355 Motor Vehicle Product 

Liability 
360 Other Personal Injury 
362 Personal Injury -Medical 

Malpractice  

CIVIL RIGHTS 
440 Other Civil Rights 
441 Voting 
442 Employment 
443 Housing/ 

Accommodations 
445 Amer. w/Disabilities–

Employment 
446 Amer. w/Disabilities–Other 
448 Education 

PERSONAL INJURY 
365 Personal Injury – Product 

Liability 
367 Health Care/ 

Pharmaceutical Personal 
Injury Product Liability 

368 Asbestos Personal Injury 
Product Liability 

PERSONAL PROPERTY 
370 Other Fraud 
371 Truth in Lending 
380 Other Personal Property 

Damage 
385 Property Damage Product 

Liability 

PRISONER PETITIONS 

HABEAS CORPUS 
463 Alien Detainee 
510 Motions to Vacate 

Sentence 
530 General 
535 Death Penalty 

OTHER 
540 Mandamus & Other 
550 Civil Rights 
555 Prison Condition 
560 Civil Detainee– 

Conditions of 
Confinement 

625 Drug Related Seizure of 
Property 21 USC § 881 

690 Other 

LABOR
710 Fair Labor Standards Act 
720 Labor/Management 

Relations 
740 Railway Labor Act 
751 Family and Medical 

Leave Act 
790 Other Labor Litigation 
791 Employee Retirement 

Income Security Act 

IMMIGRATION 
462 Naturalization 

Application 
465 Other Immigration 

Actions 

422 Appeal 28 USC § 158 
423 Withdrawal 28 USC 

§ 157

PROPERTY RIGHTS 
820 Copyrights 
830 Patent 
835 Patent Abbreviated New 

Drug Application 
840 Trademark 

SOCIAL SECURITY 
861 HIA (1395ff) 
862 Black Lung (923) 
863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) 
864 SSID Title XVI 
865 RSI (405(g)) 

FEDERAL TAX SUITS 
870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff or 

Defendant) 
871 IRS–Third Party 26 USC 

§ 7609 

375 False Claims Act 
376 Qui Tam (31 USC 

§ 3729(a)) 
400 State Reapportionment 
410 Antitrust 
430 Banks and Banking 
450 Commerce 
460 Deportation 
470 Racketeer Influenced & 

Corrupt Organizations 
480 Consumer Credit 
490 Cable/Sat TV 
850 Securities/Commodities/ 

Exchange 
890 Other Statutory Actions 
891 Agricultural Acts 
893 Environmental Matters 
895 Freedom of Information 

Act 
896 Arbitration 
899 Administrative Procedure 

Act/Review or Appeal of 
Agency Decision 

950 Constitutionality of State 
Statutes 

V. ORIGIN (Place an “X” in One Box Only) 
1 Original 

Proceeding 
2 Removed from 

State Court 
3 Remanded from 

Appellate Court 
4 Reinstated or 

Reopened 
5 Transferred from  

Another District (specify) 
6 Multidistrict   

Litigation–Transfer 
8 Multidistrict 

Litigation–Direct File 

VI. CAUSE OF 
ACTION 

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing  (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity): 

Brief description of cause: 

VII. REQUESTED IN
COMPLAINT:

CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION 
UNDER RULE 23, Fed. R. Civ. P. 

DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint: 
JURY DEMAND: Yes No 

VIII. RELATED CASE(S),
IF ANY   (See instructions):

JUDGE  DOCKET NUMBER 

IX. DIVISIONAL ASSIGNMENT (Civil Local Rule 3-2)
(Place an “X” in One Box Only) SAN FRANCISCO/OAKLAND SAN JOSE EUREKA-MCKINLEYVILLE 

DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

Antonio Lara Cerrano Sodexo, Inc., and SDH Education West, LLC

Contra Costa County

(see attachment).
Jeffrey D. Wohl (CSB 096838), Zina Deldar (CSB 282637), Paul A. Holton (CSB 313047)
Paul Hastings LLP
101 California Street, 48th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94111 (415-856-7000)

28 U.S.C. section 1332 (as amended by the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005 [“CAFA”], Pub. L. 109-2, § 4(a), 119 Stat. 9), and section 1441(a)

failure to pay sick pay and vacation pay; to provide accurate written wage statements; to timely pay all final wages; and unfair competition

✔

05/17/2019 /s/ Jeffrey D. Wohl
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JS-CAND 44 (rev. 07/16) 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS-CAND 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet. The JS-CAND 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and 
service of pleading or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved in its original form by the Judicial 
Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the Clerk of Court to initiate the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is 
submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

I. a)   Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and 
then the official, giving both name and title. 

   b)   County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the 
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land 
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the “defendant” is the location of the tract of land involved.) 

   c)   Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting 
in this section “(see attachment).” 

II.     Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 8(a), which requires that jurisdictions be shown in 
pleadings. Place an “X” in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below. 

(1) United States plaintiff. Jurisdiction based on 28 USC §§ 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here. 

(2) United States defendant. When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an “X” in this box. 

(3) Federal question. This refers to suits under 28 USC § 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment 
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code 
takes precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked. 

(4) Diversity of citizenship. This refers to suits under 28 USC § 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the 
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity 
cases.)

III.    Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS-CAND 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. 
Mark this section for each principal party. 

IV.    Nature of Suit.  Place an “X” in the appropriate box. If the nature of suit cannot be determined, be sure the cause of action, in Section VI below, is 
sufficient to enable the deputy clerk or the statistical clerk(s) in the Administrative Office to determine the nature of suit. If the cause fits more than 
one nature of suit, select the most definitive. 

V.     Origin.  Place an “X” in one of the six boxes. 

(1) Original Proceedings. Cases originating in the United States district courts. 

(2) Removed from State Court. Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 USC § 1441. When the 
petition for removal is granted, check this box. 

(3) Remanded from Appellate Court. Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing 
date.

(4) Reinstated or Reopened. Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date. 

(5) Transferred from Another District. For cases transferred under Title 28 USC § 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or 
multidistrict litigation transfers. 

(6) Multidistrict Litigation Transfer. Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 USC 
§ 1407. When this box is checked, do not check (5) above. 

(8) Multidistrict Litigation Direct File. Check this box when a multidistrict litigation case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket. 

Please note that there is no Origin Code 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to changes in statute.

VI.    Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional 
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC § 553. Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service. 

VII.   Requested in Complaint.  Class Action. Place an “X” in this box if you are filing a class action under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23. 

Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.

Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded. 

VIII. Related Cases.  This section of the JS-CAND 44 is used to identify related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket 
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases. 

IX.    Divisional Assignment. If the Nature of Suit is under Property Rights or Prisoner Petitions or the matter is a Securities Class Action, leave this 
section blank. For all other cases, identify the divisional venue according to Civil Local Rule 3-2: “the county in which a substantial part of the 
events or omissions which give rise to the claim occurred or in which a substantial part of the property that is the subject of the action is situated.” 

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet. 
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ATTACHMENT TO CIVIL COVER SHEET 
U.S.D.C., N.D. Cal., No. ________ 

 

ATTACHMENT TO CIVIL COVER SHEET 
 
Plaintiff Antonio Lara Cerrano is represented by the following attorneys: 

Marcus J. Bradley (Cal. State Bar No. 174156) 
Kiley L. Grombacher (Cal. State Bar No. 245960) 
Taylor L. Emerson (Cal. State Bar No. 225303) 
Bradley/Grombacher, LLP 
2815 Townsgate Road, Suite 130 
Westlake Village, California  91361 
Telephone:  (805) 270-7100 
Facsimile:  (805) 270-7589 
mbradley@bradleygrombacher.com 
kgrombacher@bradleygrombacher.com 
temerson@bradleygrombacher.com 
 

Sahag Majarian (Cal. State Bar No. 146621) 
Law Offices of Sahag Majarian II 
18250 Ventura Boulevard 
Tarzana, California 91356 
Telephone:  (818) 609-0807 
Facsimile:  (818) 609-0892 
sahagii@aol.com 
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